
City Commission
Kingston Springs, Tennessee

02/15/24

Meeting Packet
 



 



Start Table of Contents

City Commission
Meeting Packet

02/15/24
1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by _______________________ at ______ p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

A. Board Members
1. ________ Mayor Tony Gross
2. ________ Vice Mayor Glenn Remick
3. ________ Commissioner Carolyn Clark
4. ________ Commissioner Mike Hargis
5. ________ Commissioner Todd Verhoven

B. Non-Voting Staff
1. ________ City Manager John Lawless
2. ________ City Attorney Tim Potter
3. ________ Financial Director Kellie Reed
4. ________ City Recorder Jamie Dupre'
5. ________ Public Safety Director Eugene Ivey
6. ________ Parks Director Brandy Miniat
7. ________ Public Works Director Roger Parker

4. Declaration of Quorum

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes

A. Motion to Approve the January 18, 2024 City Commission Meeting Minutes

6. Approval of Agenda

A. Motion to Approve the February 15, 2024 City Commission Meeting Agenda

7. Commissioner Announcements

8. Community Input and Concerns

9. Department Reports

10. Legal Updates

11. Old Business

A. Second Reading - Ordinance 24-001 - Budget Amendment
Motion to approve second reading of Ordinance 24-001 - Budget Amendment

12. New Business

A. Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure - Package Liquor Permit
Motion to approve Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure for Package Liquors Permit –Patel
– Discount Liquor Store – 123 Luyben Hills Road, Kingston Springs, TN

B. Ordinance 24-002 - Amending Title 7 Chapter 1 and Title 12 Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, and
12 of the Municipal Code



 



Motion to approve first reading of Ordinance 24-002 – Adoption of the 2022 International Building
Codes

13. Surplus

14. Other (Discussion Only)

15. Reminders

16. Adjournment

End Table of Contents
 



 



3. Roll Call
A. Board Members

1. ________ Mayor Tony Gross
2. ________ Vice Mayor Glenn Remick
3. ________ Commissioner Carolyn Clark
4. ________ Commissioner Mike Hargis
5. ________ Commissioner Todd Verhoven

B. Non-Voting Staff
1. ________ City Manager John Lawless
2. ________ City Attorney Tim Potter
3. ________ Financial Director Kellie Reed
4. ________ City Recorder Jamie Dupre'
5. ________ Public Safety Director Eugene Ivey
6. ________ Parks Director Brandy Miniat
7. ________ Public Works Director Roger Parker

Back to Table of Contents
 



5. Approval of Meeting Minutes
A. Motion to Approve the January 18, 2024 City Commission Meeting Minutes

Back to Table of Contents
 



Approval of Meeting Minutes

Motion to Approve the January 18, 2024 City
Commission Meeting Minutes
Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners 

Regular Business Meeting Minutes 

January 24, 2024  

(rescheduled from January 18, 2024) 
 

 

1. Call to Order:   

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Gross at 7:02 p.m. 

 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance: 

 

 

3. Roll Call: 

 

Board Members: 

Carolyn Clark, Commissioner   Absent 

Tony Gross, Mayor     Present 

Mike Hargis, Commissioner    Absent 

Glenn Remick, Vice-Mayor     Present 

Todd Verhoven, Commissioner    Present 

 

Town Staff: 

John Lawless, City Manager    Present 

Jamie Dupré, City Recorder    Present 

Tim Potter, City Attorney       Present 

Kellie Reed, Finance Director    Present 

Eugene Ivey, Public Safety Director   Absent 

Brandy Miniat, Parks Director   Absent 

            Roger Parker, Public Works Director    Absent 

Brandon Scruggs, Public Safety Officer  Present 

             

  

4. Declaration of Quorum by Mayor 

Mayor Gross declared a quorum. 

 

 

5. Motion to Approve the December 21, 2023 City Commission Meeting Minutes: 

Motion to Approve the December 21, 2023, City Commission Meeting minutes made by Vice-

Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner Verhoven. Motion passed. 

 

 

6. Motion to Approve the January 24, 2024, Meeting Agenda: 

Mayor Gross requested the agenda be amended to add New Business Item 12-F: Motion to 

approve Resolution 24-001 – Consent to assignment of Professional Services Agreement for 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          2 

 

 

Planning Services. Motion to approve the amended January 24, 2024 Meeting Agenda made by 

Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner Verhoven. Motion passed.  

 

 

7. Announcements from Commissioners:  

Vice-Mayor Remick thanked the Town for being on top of the snow storm. They did a 

fantastic job on the cleanup. Mayor Gross agreed. Commissioner Verhoven seconded that, and 

thanked the Public Works Department and Public Safety Department for their efforts. 

 

 

8. Community Input:  

None 

 

 

9. Department Reports: 

 

A. City Manager Updates  

City Manager Lawless echoed comments by commissioners. Public Works, Public Safety 

and Parks did a great job working together, and worked through holiday and the office 

being closed to ensure roads were safe. 

 

• Planning Commission Meeting Update 

Planning Commission approved plat for a parcel in Bluffs of the Harpeth. They had 

very preliminary discussions about sidewalk development from Ellersly to downtown. 

Staff did speak with the property developer and property owner to see if there is a way 

to get feasible access from the Ellersly neighborhood into the other sidewalk system in 

town. It is extremely early in those discussions, and staff will continue to have those. 

Planning Commission charged staff with review of Article 3.100 of town’s zoning 

ordinance which is related to accessory usage, and to present potential revisions to 

Planning Commission, and eventually to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

• Grant Updates (Multimodal, Safe Routes, TAP) 

Multimodal – stormwater remediation at Thorntons is on hold until weather clears up. 

Safe Routes to School is complete; working with TDOT on closeout, which could take 

several months as TDOT is very understaffed at the moment. TAP Grant – working 

with TDOT to get their concurrence on construction bids. Construction should begin at 

the end of March with completion at end of October. 

 

• Mast Lights /I40 Exit 188 

The issue is bigger than changing out bulbs. We are working through issues with 

Stansell Electric. We are on their list, but they are busy. We’ve worked with Travis 

Electric in past, but this is not within their scope of work. Hopefully we can get on 

Stansell’s calendar soon. 

 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          3 

 

 

• Acorn Court Pump Station 

Project is 80% complete. Should be complete by the middle to end of February. It took 

about 60 days longer due to supply issues with preformed concrete and the contractor 

hitting more bedrock than initially anticipated. 

 

• Lagoon Draining 

Draining is occurring and will take some time. We might be able to see if there was 

additional damage to the liner by end of February. 

 

• SCADA 

System has been installed at 11 pump stations, and 12th will be installed at Acorn 

Court once it is completed. We are receiving data, but it will take a few wet and dry 

cycles to establish trends. 

 

• I&I Project Status 

From initial data received from the SCADA system the section of sewer line between 

downtown and the Valley Drive pump station initially stood out. Most of the line has 

been scoped and there are breaks visible. This will be a starting point for repairs. We 

are receiving bids to clean the line so we can further inspect it and determine what 

kind of repair options we have – new pipes or liner in existing pipe. 

 

o Austin Peay Progress 

APSU GIS department is finalizing the digitizing of our existing maps. This will 

allow us to pinpoint existing drains, manhole covers, etc. Once that is done, the 

department, as well as staff, will field verify the mapping. 

o Local Mapping 

The Town has purchased its own field GPS unit and will be able to add data points 

to the mapping as we find them. 

o Potential Starting Point 

As noted, from initial data gathered, the place to start is downtown to the Valley 

drive pump station. 

 

 

10. Legal Updates:  

None. 

 

 

11. Unfinished Business: 

None. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          4 

 

 

12. New Business: 

 

A. 2022-2023 Annual Financial Report – John Poole, CPA. 

Auditor John Poole stated the audit has been submitted to the Comptroller’s Office. He said 

as auditors, they try to do three things: furnish the state with the required reports; make 

sure the town received the monies due to the town from various taxes from the state, 

property taxes, fines and fees, and once money is received, to review that it is handled in 

accordance with state guidelines; and they look at the budget to be sure purchasing 

guidelines are followed. There were no issues. They look at areas that are susceptible. The 

state requires separate books for the different funds. Sewer fund is the most scrutinized by 

the state. State law states that it had to be profitable every other year. Last audit the sewer 

department had debt. This year it had a surplus of $1,734. Sewer fund received $2,738 in 

interest income. Poole has asked management to look at ways to increase interest dollars. 

Management did this several months ago and negotiated with our local bank to increase 

interest on all accounts to match what is currently being offered by the Local Government 

Investment Pool. Nothing negative related to the sewer fund. 

 

State does not scrutinize general fund like it does the sewer fund. Poole said in looking at 

the general fund, the town spent more than it earned but that was due to capital outlay for 

one-time purchases and the amount of debt the town paid off. The amount of money in the 

bank as of June, was almost a year of recurring expenses, which was two to three times the 

amount required. He said the level of debt was not extensive, the town is in good shape 

financially, and procedures look good.  

 

B. Discussion on concept idea of labyrinth installation in Town park space – KS resident 

Baker Giduz. 

Baker Giduz began by thanking town for updates to dog park and fixing the fence. He 

presented an idea for a labyrinth installation, which is not a maze, but a walking 

meditation. There is a great space behind the dog park, near a waterfall. A labyrinth has 

potential economic and community impact by increasing tourism, community engagement, 

economic boost, enhanced public spaces, well-being and relaxation, and educational 

opportunities. He presented a cost estimate for materials and said he would donate his time 

and service. Mayor Gross asked if it would be low-lying so that it could be mowed over. 

Giduz confirmed that was the case. He did not know if the land would need to be leveled, 

and if so, that would be an additional cost. Vice-Mayor Remick stated he thought the initial 

proposal could be just mowing it out and leaving the taller grass as a barrier just to get a 

visual. Giduz said he would be willing to mow out the pattern with the city’s permission. 

Commissioner Vehoven thought it was a great use of an unused space. Vice-Mayor Remick 

said if you build it, they will come. Board thanked Mr. Giduz for his presentation. 

 

C. Approval of Interlocal Agreement with the Town of Pegram, Tennessee regarding the 

sharing of Building Inspector and Code Enforcement services. 

City Manager Lawless said that he and Pegram Mayor Louallen have identified a candidate 

for this position that they would like to hire. The position will be set up as a Pegram 

employee with the Town of Kingston Springs reimbursing Pegram for the cost of this 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          5 

 

 

service. Cost and time of the building inspector and codes enforcement employee will be 

split 50/50. Hours will be split Monday – Friday, 1/2 day at each location. It will be a 

consistent schedule. There is an updated copy of the agreement because our insurance 

company fleshed out verbiage on liability coverage for the employee. Board will need to 

approve agreement and give the City Manager power to execute the agreement with the 

Mayor of Pegram. Lawless informed the board that Codes Official Mike Armstrong has 

submitted his resignation. The new employee will do inspection and codes enforcement, 

and he has a lot of experience in both areas. We have been using Cheatham County for our 

inspections, and they have begun charging the town monthly for those services, averaging 

$1,939 per month. We currently have approximately $830 budgeted for a code enforcement 

official, for a total of $2,769 per month we are paying for Building and Codes services. 

This agreement option will be more expensive, but will provide much more consistent 

service to the community. Mayor Gross said he was glad we could work this out with 

Pegram. Commissioner Verhoven said working with Pegram was a win-win. Vice-Mayor 

Remick made a motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement, with a second by 

Commissioner Verhoven. Motion passed. Vice-Mayor Remick then made a motion to 

allow City Manager to execute the contract, with a second from Commissioner Verhoven. 

Motion passed. 

 

D. Motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance 24-01 – Budget Amendment. 

Finance Director Reed said this is for two things. The Police Department was awarded a 

Violent Crimes Intervention Fund Community Crime Prevention Grant (100%) in the 

amount of $63,830 and this is to allocate those funds. The budget amendment is also 

appropriating funds in the amount of $22,500 to fund the new building and codes position 

with Pegram. Motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance 24-01 – Budget Amendment 

made by Vice-Mayor Remick with a second by Commissioner Verhoven. Roll call vote 

was held with Commissioner Clark absent, Mayor Gross voting yes, Commissioner Hargis 

absent, Vice-Mayor Remick voting yes, and Commissioner Verhoven voting yes. Motion 

passed. 

 

E. Discussion on potential installation of midblock crosswalk on the Luyben Hills 

Road/SR249 Corridor. 

City Manager Lawless said as noted in packet, Commissioner Clark had an email exchange 

with TDOT about the possibility of a midblock crosswalk on Luyben Hills Road. The 

crosswalk would need to be placed perpendicular to existing roadbed and be ADA 

compliant. Costs will be more that striping and signalization. Lawless reached out to 

TDOT and engineering for probable cost: 

• Survey and engineering: $12,000 

• Construction: $30,000-$40,000. Curb and gutter on each side of the road, and at least 

three panel of sidewalk would need to be removed on each side to make appropriate 

slant for ADA compliance for the crosswalk. 

• Signalization: Zane Parnell, Region 3 Traffic Office at TDOT estimated $25,000 for 

TDOT approved crosswalk signalization. 

• Low end project total would be at a cost to the Town of $60,000-$70,000. 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          6 

 

 

 

Mayor Gross said he did not see that fitting in the budget. Commissioner Verhoven said the 

idea was in the right place, but it should have been done initially while doing sidewalk, 

because now we are talking about tearing up new sidewalk, and the all the delays and extra 

costs that come with that. He has not observed a lot of foot traffic in that area. Mayor Gross 

said you could always go to the traffic light and cross. Commissioner Verhoven suggested 

as future developments come on board that the town ask for a crosswalk as part of their 

construction costs, so that taxpayers don’t have to pay for it. No further action for staff. 

 

F. Motion to Approve Resolution 24-001 – Consent to assignment of Professional 

Services Agreement for Planning Services 

City Attorney Potter said in November we renewed out contract with Plans and More for 

planning services. Commissioner Clark raised an issue about whether Plans and More were 

properly registered in the State of Tennessee, and subsequently sent an email to the City 

Attorney requesting him to review this further. The initial agreement was a Kentucky 

limited liability partnership. It was brought to the attention of Ms. Armstrong. She 

subsequently formed a general partnership. It is a proper entity. It is a Kentucky general 

partnership, but it has filed a statement of partnership authority in the state of Tennessee. 

Potter said technically what we have is a contract with Plans and More LLP. Plans and 

More LLP is not a proper entity and no longer exists. Contract needs to be with the entity 

that is Plans and More, GP. What will happen if approved is Plans and More, LLP will 

assign its contract rights with Town of Kingston Springs to Plans and More, GP, and a 

resolution from the Board is needed to do that because the agreement that was authorized 

says that in order for it to be assigned, there must be expressed written permission from 

Kingston Springs. That is why it is in the form of a resolution. Potter said in full disclosure, 

he brought this to the attention of Commissioner Clark, and told her what the plan was. He 

said that Commissioner Clark stated she could not attend the meeting due to an illness and 

requested that this item be deferred until next month’s meeting because she had questions. 

Commissioner Verhoven thought that was a fair request unless it was pressing that it 

needed to be approved now. City Manager Lawless said that would be a question for City 

Attorney Potter, but we are working with our planning services in limbo at the moment. 

Potter said the contract that we have is with an entity that does not have authority in 

Tennessee to do business. Mayor Gross said we do have planning commission meetings 

that will take place in the next month. It is crucial that the issue be resolved, because we do 

need to have planning services. Vice-Mayor Remick agreed. Commissioner Verhoven 

asked the City Attorney if there was any liability on the city because they are in Kentucky, 

and if had any concerns with the change in agreement. City Attorney Potter said that right 

now we are technically contracted with an entity that doesn’t exist. Potter said he would 

feel more comfortable once we were contracted with the proper entity. Mayor Gross said 

we should fix it. 

 

Motion to approve Resolution 24-001 – Consent to assignment of Professional Services 

Agreement for Planning Services from Plans and More LLP to Plans and More, GP made 

by Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner Verhoven. Motion passed. 

 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024                          7 

 

 

 

13. Surplus Requests: 

• Computer Monitor – Parks Department – Discard 

Motion to discard computer monitor made by Commissioner Verhoven, with a second by 

Vice-Mayor Remick. Motion passed. 

 

14. Other (Discussion Only Items): 

Mayor Gross noted that Planning Commission member Craig Kitch had a stroke, and is 

recovering. He asked that people keep Mr. Kitch in their prayers. 

 

 

15. Reminders: 

• Registration for Spring Rec League Soccer is underway. 

 

 

16. Adjourn the Meeting: 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner 

Verhoven. Motion passed, and meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
 

________________________________                   _______________________________ 
Francis A. Gross, III              Jamie Dupré 
Mayor                City Recorder 



6. Approval of Agenda
A. Motion to Approve the February 15, 2024 City Commission Meeting Agenda

Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 



9. Department Reports
Back to Table of Contents
 







































11. Old Business
A. Second Reading - Ordinance 24-001 - Budget Amendment

Motion to approve second reading of Ordinance 24-001 - Budget Amendment

Back to Table of Contents
 



Old Business

Second Reading - Ordinance 24-001 - Budget
Amendment
Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 



WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

Section 1: 

Section 2: 

Codes Department

Police Department

First Reading:

Public Hearing:

Second Reading:

Attest:

City Recorder Jamie Dupre' 

February 15, 2024

February 15, 2024

Mayor Francis A. Gross III.

January 18, 2024

$852,420 $916,250

A budget amendment consisting of the following appropriations be adopted as follows:
Beginning Budget 

Anticipated Revenues

Ending Budget 

Anticipated Revenues

$22,000 $44,500

General Fund

ORDINANCE # 24-001

AN ORDINANCE BY THE KINGSTON SPRINGS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO ACCEPT A BUDGET 

AMENDMENT FOR THE 2023-2024 FISCAL YEAR. 

$3,629,691 $3,693,521

the Violent Crimes Intervention Fund Community Crime Prevention Grant has been 

awarded to the Police Department in the amount of $63,830 for the purpose of 

purchasing body cameras, body armor kits, night vision optics head gear, a desktop 

computer, tasers and taser equipment. As such the Board of Commissioners wishes to 

amend the budget for the appropriation of this 100% funded grant; and, 

NOW THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Kingston Springs, 

Tennessee that this ordinance shall become effective 15 days after final passage the public welfare 

requiring it. 

A budget amendment consisting of the available revenues be adopted as follows:
Beginning Budget 

Anticipated Revenues

Ending Budget 

Anticipated RevenuesGeneral Fund

the Board of Commissioners has come to an agreement with the Town of Pegram in an 

effort to fund a position for Building Inspector and Codes Enforcement.  With this 

agreement the town will be responsible for funding half of the cost of salary, benefits, 

liabilities, and materials for the position and therefore wishes to appropriate $22,500 

and amend the budget for the purpose of funding this position. 



12. New Business
A. Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure - Package Liquor Permit

Motion to approve Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure for Package Liquors Permit –Patel
– Discount Liquor Store – 123 Luyben Hills Road, Kingston Springs, TN

B. Ordinance 24-002 - Amending Title 7 Chapter 1 and Title 12 Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, and
12 of the Municipal Code
Motion to approve first reading of Ordinance 24-002 – Adoption of the 2022 International Building
Codes

Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 



New Business

Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure -
Package Liquor Permit
Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 

















New Business

Ordinance 24-002 - Amending Title 7 Chapter 1
and Title 12 Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, and 12
of the Municipal Code
Back to Table of Contents 

Attachments to Follow
 



Ordinance 24-002 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF KINGSTON SPRINGS, TENNESSEE TO 

AMEND TITLE 12, BUILDING, UTILITY, ETC., CODES, AMENDING 

CHAPTERS 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11 AND 12 AS WELL AS TITLE 7, CHAPTER 1, 

SECTION 7. 

 

WHEREAS, To properly protect the citizens of the municipality and to insure safety of all 

persons and structures therein, the Board of Mayor and Commissioners deems it 

necessary to amend the existing building, utility, etc. codes of the Town to adopt the 

2022 International Building Codes consistent with state law. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of  Mayor and Commissioners of 

Kingston Springs, Tennessee that Title 12, Chapters1, 2, 3, 4,  9, 10, 11, and 12 as well as Title 

7, Chapter 1, Section 7 are hereby amended as follows: 

Section 12-101 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Building Code and International 

Residential Code to the 2022 International Building Code and 2022 International Residential 

Code including any appendixes. 

Section 12-201 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Plumbing Code to the 2022 

International Plumbing code. 

Section 12-301 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code to 

the 2022 International Property Maintenance Code. 

Section 12-404 which had previously been repealed shall have the following language:  The 

2022 International Fuel Gas Code is hereby adopted as the gas code for the Town of Kingston 

Springs. 

Section 12-901 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Existing Building Code to the 

2022 International Existing Building Code. 

Section 12-1001 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Mechanical Code to the 2022 

International Mechanical Code. 

Section 12-1101 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Energy Conservation Code to 

the 2022 International Energy Conservation Code. 

Sections 12-1201 through 12-1206 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Fire Code to 

the 2022 International Fire Code. 

Section 7-101 shall be substituted from the 2015 International Fire Code to the 2022 

International Fire Code. 

 

All reference herein to the 2022 International Codes as applicable are those model editions of 

respective codes as prepared, published and adopted by the International Council. 

 

Violation and penalty provision – As to the Ordinance adoption above, each respectively, it shall 

be unlawful for any person to violate or fail to comply with any provision of the code herein 

adopted by reference and modified or amended, the violation of any section shall be punishable 

by penalty under the general penalty provision of the municipal code of ordinances.  Each day a 

violation is allowed to continue constitutes a separate offense. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

This Ordinance shall take effect the later of the date that is 15 days after its passage or upon 

publication of this Ordinance or its caption, the public welfare demanding it. 

 

Passed on First Reading       , 2024 

 

 

Passed on Second Reading       , 2024 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Francis A. Gross III, Mayor of Kingston Springs, Tennessee 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

    

Jamie Dupré, Town Recorder 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

    

      City Attorney 


	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Roll Call
	Approval of Meeting Minutes
	Motion to Approve the January 18, 2024 City Commission Meeting Minutes

	Approval of Agenda
	Department Reports
	Old Business
	Second Reading - Ordinance 24-001 - Budget Amendment

	New Business
	Certificate of Compliance for State Licensure - Package Liquor Permit
	Ordinance 24-002 - Amending Title 7 Chapter 1 and Title 12 Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, and 12 of the Municipal Code


